ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 


I. 	 The Circuit Court ofWood County erred in holding that when a subpoena is issued to 
a hospital for "all" medical records, that does not contain an Order by the Court 
stating that Appellant's confidential health information as defmed by W.Va. Code § 
27-3-1, is sufficiently relevant to a proceeding to outweigh the importance of 
maintaining the confidentiality ofthe information, that Appellant cannot sue the 
hospital for releasing the medical records under W.Va. Code § 27-3-1 for wrongful 
disclosure of confidential mental health information. 

II. 	 The Circuit Court of Wood County erred in holding that Appellant's lack of objection 
to a subpoena for "all" medical records constituted authorization by the Appellant for 
the Defendant to disclose confidential information related to her mental health 
treatment, as defined under W.Va. Code § 27-3-1. 

III. 	 The Circuit Court ofWood County erred when they held that Appellant cannot sue 
the hospital, under common law theories of wrongful disclosure ofmental health 
information, as set out in R.K. v. St. Mary's Medical Center, Inc., when the hospital 
is in compliance with the processes set out in W.Va. Code §57-5-4a et. seq. or 45 
CFR §164.512, and then discloses Appellant's confidential mental health information 
to a third party in response to a subpoena. 

IV. 	 The Circuit Court ofWood County erred in making a finding of fact that Ms. Barber 
was "dishonest" with her counsel, when such determination is an issue for the jury 
and not within the purview of the judge to make such determinations of fact 
inconsistent with allegations in Appellant's complaint on a Motion to Dismiss. 

STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

During the litigation of a federal fraud case, a subpoena was issued to Camden Clark 

Memorial Hospital Corp., ("Camden Clark") for "all" of Appellant's medical records. (Compl. ,-r 

7; R.3). The subpoena did not contain an authorization by Appellant Jill C. Barber ("Barber") to 

release confidential mental health information, or the records of St. Joseph's Hospital, where 

Barber's mental health treatment occurred years before it merged with Camden Clark, and was 

not accompanied by a court order of any kind. (See Subpoena Duces Tecum; R.11). The 

subpoena did not requests psychiatric or mental health records, nor did it request records from 
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Ms. Barber's adolescence. (Compl. ,-r 7;R.3). In response to the subpoena, Defendant Camden 

Clark produced over 1,000 pages of documents, including approximately 238 pages of 

confidential mental health information and record from when Mrs. Barber was treated at the 

inpatient Mental Health Unit of St. Joseph's Hospital in 1982 and again in 1983, as a teenager, 

over thirty years ago. (Compl.,-r 8;R.3). Ms. Barber did not at any time provide any form of 

authorization for Defendant to release any of her confidential mental health information to any 

party. (Compl. ,-r 13;R.4). 

Appellant's confidential mental health information was not determined by any court to be 

sufficiently relevant to Appellant's action against Sedgwick to outweigh the importance of 

maintaining the confidentiality established by W.Va. Code §27-3-1. (Compl.,-r 15;R.4). 

Appellant was not notified of the exact documents that were provided by Camden Clark. (Compl. 

,-r 17;R.4). Barber further expected, that Camden Clark would produce only those documents 

which they were legally allowed to under both State and Federal Law. (Compl. ,-r 18;R.4). Upon 

formal request, on February 26, 2016, defense counsel for Sedgwick produced to Barber's 

counsel a copy of records received in response to approximately 5 of the 14 subpoena duces 

tecums they had served in the case, consisting of thousands of pages of documents from several 

health providers. (Compl. ,-r19;R.4). On or about March 7, 2016, Barber was deposed in the 

federal fraud case. (Compl. ,-r 21 ;R.5). During the deposition, opposing counsel unexpectedly 

confronted Mrs. Barber, with confidential health information improperly provided by Camden 

Clark, including the records from her adolescent admittance into psychiatric care at another 

hospital that has in recent years been merged with Camden Clark. (Compl. ,-r21 ;R.5). Upon 

being confronted with this confidential material, which should have never been released in 

response to a general subpoena duces tecum in the State of West Virginia, Barber suffered severe 
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emotional distress, humiliation, and embarrassment. The production of said records brought to 

Appellant's consciousness some memories she had in essence, suppressed and removed from her 

memory. (CompI. ~ 23;R.5). 

Appellant then became aware of Camden Clark's improper disclosure of confidential 

mental health information and filed suit for a wrongful disclosure of confidential mental health 

information under W.Va. Code 27-3-1 on January 23,2017. On June 19,2017, the Wood County 

Circuit Court Judge Jason A. Wharton erroneously held that Appellant authorized the disclosure 

of her confidential mental health information by failing to object to a subpoena and further that 

Defendant was protected from claims of wrongful disclosure of confidential mental health 

information when they complied with W.Va. Code § 57-5-a et. seq. and 45 CFR § 164.512. 

Barber timely appealed, and respectfully requests the Court to consider the points and authorities 

in this brief. 

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

The Circuit Court of Wood County erred in holding that when a subpoena is issued to a 

hospital for "all" medical records, that does not contain an Order by the Court stating that 

Appellant's confidential health information as defined by W.Va. Code § 27-3-1, is sufficiently 

relevant to a proceeding to outweigh the importance of maintaining the confidentiality of the 

information, that Appellant cannot sue the hospital for releasing the medical records under 

W.Va. Code § 27-3-1 for wrongful disclosure of confidential mental health information. West 

Virginia law recognizes a private cause of action for the disclosure of confidential health 

information in violation of W.Va. Code § 27-3-1. The need to comply with W.Va. Code § 27-3

1 is not preempted by compliance with W.Va. Code § 57-5-4a et seq. or 45 CFR § 164.512. 
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The court failed to consider that W. Va. Code §27-3-1 is more stringent and offers higher 

protection to patients than 45 CFR §164.512. 

The Circuit Court of Wood County erred in holding that Appellant's lack of objection to 

a subpoena for "all" medical records constituted authorization by the Appellant for the 

Defendant to disclose confidential information related to her mental health treatment, as defined 

under W.Va. Code § 27-3-1. The only way a Plaintiff may authorize disclosure of confidential 

information, including mental health information, as defined in W.Va. Code §27-3-1 is by the 

patient or client by his or her legal guardian signing a written authorization allowing the 

disclosure of confidential information, as described in the process set forth in W.Va. Code §27

3-2. The code clearly explains that consent for confidential records is not effective unless it is in 

writing. 

The Circuit Court of Wood County erred when they held that Appellant cannot sue the 

hospital, under common law theories of wrongful disclosure of mental health information, as set 

out in R.K. v. St. Mary's Medical Center, Inc., when the hospital is in compliance with the 

processes set out in W.Va. Code §57-5-4a et. seq. or 45 CFR §164.512, and then discloses 

Appellant's confidential mental health information to a third party in response to a SUbpoena. 

West Virginia law recognizes a common law cause of action for the wrongful disclosure of 

mental health information. Further, compliance with W.Va. Code § 57-5-4a et seq. or 45 CFR 

§164.512 does not automatically bar a plaintiffs claim for wrongful disclosure of medical or 

personal health information. The court falsely determined that compliance with W.Va. Code 

§57-5-4a et seq. protects a hospital from being sued under state common-law theories for 

disclosure of confidential medical information. 
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The Circuit Court of Wood County erred in making a finding of fact that Ms. Barber was 

"dishonest" with her counsel, when such determination is an issue for the jury and not within the 

purview of the judge to make such determinations of fact inconsistent with allegations in 

Appellant's complaint on a Motion to Dismiss. Determinations of intent, as they weigh upon 

honesty and determination of facts, are considerations for a jury and not to be detern1ined by a 

Judge on a motion to dismiss. 

STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT AND DECISION 

Jill C. Barber, Petitioner, requests oral argument in this matter as she believes it to be 

proper under Rule 19 of the West Virginia Rules of Appellate Procedure in that this case 

involves: (1) assignment of error in the application of settled law; (2) an unsustainable exercise 

of discretion where the law governing the discretion is well-settled; (3) a result against the 

weight of the evidence, and (4) a narrow issue oflaw. 

ST ANDARD OF REVIEW 

This case presents a question of law; therefore, this court must review the Circuit Court's 

granting of a Rule 12(b)( 6) motion to dismiss for failure to state a claim upon which relief can be 

granted de novo. State ex rei. McGraw v. Scott Runyan Pontiac-Buick, Inc., 194 W.Va. 770,461 

S.E.2d 516 (1995). 

ARGUMENT 

I. 	 THE CIRCUIT COURT OF WOOD COUNTY ERRED IN HOLDING THAT 
WHEN A SUBPOENA IS ISSUED TO A HOSPITAL FOR "ALL" MEDICAL 
RECORDS THAT APPELLANT CANNOT SUE THE HOSPITAL FOR 
RELEASING MEDICAL RECORDS UNDER W.VA. CODE § 27-3-1 FOR 
WRONGFUL DISCLOSURE OF CONFIDENTIAL MENTAL HEALTH 
INFORMATION. 

5 




The Court erred when it held that when a subpoena is issued for "all" medical records, 

not including an order by the Court stating that the confidential health information as defined by 

W.Va. Code § 27-3-1, is sufficiently relevant to a proceeding to outweigh the importance of 

maintaining the confidentiality of the information, and that Ms. Barber could not sue the hospital 

for releasing her confidential medical records for wrongful disclosure of confidential mental 

health information under § 27-3-1. The code explicitly defines confidential information as: 

(a) Communications 	and information obtained in the course of treatment or 
evaluation of any client or patient are confidential information. Such 
confidential information includes the fact that a person is or has been a client 
or patient, information transmitted by persons participating in the 
accomplishment of the objectives of diagnosis or treatment, all diagnoses or 
opinions formed regarding a client's or patient's physical, mental, or 
emotional condition, any advice, instructions or prescriptions issued in the 
course of the diagnosis or treatment, and any record or characterizations of the 
matters hereinbefore described. It does not include information that does not 
identify a client or patient, information from which a person acquainted with a 
client or patient would not recognize such client or patient and uncoded 
information from which there is no possible means to identify a client or 
patient. W.Va. Code § 27-3-1. 

The statute clearly explains the only circumstances under which such records may be disclosed 

are: for an involuntary examination, pursuant to a court order based upon a finding that the 

information is sufficiently relevant to a proceeding before the court to outweigh the importance 

of 	maintaining confidentiality, to provide notice to the Federal National Instant Criminal 

Background Check System, to protect against a clear and substantial danger of imminent injury, 

for treatment or internal review purposes, or without the patients consent as provided for Under 

the Privacy Rule ofthe federal Health Insurance Portability Act. !d. 

The Courts have regularly emphasized the importance of protecting confidential health 

information. "The public policy consideration which underlines the statutes preventing 

disclosure of confidential information held by counselors, social workers, psychologists, andlor 
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psychiatrists is to enhance communications and effective treatment and diagnosis by protecting 

the patient/client from the embarrassment and humiliation that might be caused by the disclosure 

of information imparted during the course of consultation." Syl. Pt. 2, State v. Roy, 194 W. Va. 

276,460 S.E.2d 277 (1995). They have also held, "A patient does have a cause of action for the 

breach of the duty of confidentiality against a treating physician who wrongfully divulges 

confidential information." Morris v. Consolidation Coal Co., 191 W.Va. 426, 446 S.E.2d 648 

(1994). The Courts have also established the importance of the right of privacy. "The right of 

privacy, including the right of an individual to be let alone and keep secret his private 

communications, conversations and affairs, is a right the unwarranted invasion or violation of 

which gives rise to a common law right of action for damages." Roach v. Harper, 143 W.Va. 

869, 105 S.E. 2d 564 (1958). The Courts have explained an invasion of such privacy includes, 

(1) an unreasonable intrusion upon the selection of another; (2) an appropriation of another's 

name or likeness; (3) unreasonable publicity given to another's private life; and (4) publicity that 

unreasonably places another in a false light before the public. " Crump v. Beckley Newspapers, 

Inc., 173 W.Va. 699, 320 S.E. 2d 70 (1983). The Court has also recognized a fiduciary 

relationship exists between a physician and patient. See Syl. pt. 1, State ex reI. Kitzmiller v. 

Henning, 190 W. Va. 142,437 S.E.2d 452 (1993) holding (information is entrusted to the doctor 

in the expectation of confidentiality and the doctor has a fiduciary obligation in that regard). The 

West Virginia Courts have long upheld the importance of protecting confidential information, 

and as such it is protected by W.Va. Code § 27-3-1. 

Subsection (3) of W.Va. Code § 27-3-1 allows for disclosure "pursuant to an order of any 

court based upon a finding that the information is sufficiently relevant to a proceeding before the 

court to outweigh the importance of maintaining the confidentiality established by this section." 
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W.Va. Code § 27-3-1. The Courts have explained however, "before any in camera inspection of 

statutorily protected communications can be justified, a defendant must show both relevancy and 

a legitimate need for access to the communications. This preliminary showing is not met by bald 

and unilluminating allegations that the protected communications could be relevant or that the 

very circumstances of the communications indicate they are likely to be relevant or material to 

the case. Similarly, an assertion that inspection of the communications is needed only for a 

possible attack on credibility is also rejected." SyI. Pt. 3, State v. Roy, 194 W. Va. 276, 460 

S.E.2d 277 (1995). Therefore, the confidential medical records should not have been released as 

they do not relate to one of the exceptions to disclosure, and such Appellant should be able to 

have redressability for the hospital's disclosure of her confidential medical information. 

A. 	 The United States District Court for the Southern District of West Virginia found 
the records at issue in this case were not relevant in Appellant's federal fraud case. 

Subsequently, in Barber v. Heslep, 2017 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 112889 (S.D. W. Va. July 20, 

2017), the United States District Court analyzed the confidential health information at issue in 

this case with Appellant's federal claim involving fraudulent conduct in resolving a Worker's 

Compensation claim. In the aforementioned federal case, Barber was served by Helsep with a 

request for production of documents seeking the mental health records from Barber's earlier 

treatment. Barber did not release those records to the Defendant, and in tum was served by 

Defendant Camden Clark Memorial Hospital with a subpoena requiring production of her 

records. Barber filed a Motion to Quash the subpoena, whereas Defendant filed a motion to 

Compel the production of records. The Court analyzed if Plaintiff Barber, had to produce her 

30-year-old mental health records to Defendant. The Court analyzed the records under W.Va. 
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Code § 27-3-1 (b), and ruled that the "mental health records are not privileged and may not be 

discovered." Barber v. Heslep, 4. The Court further explained that, "the West Virginia 

legislature has mandated that mental health care information be treated differently from other 

health care matters, providing mental health care records with heightened protection from 

disclosure." See W.Va. Code § 27-3-1. Id at 4. The Court explained, "Mental health care 

records reflecting treatment received by Plaintiff three decades earlier, when she was a teenager, 

are simply too remote in time to be of great evidentiary significance." Id at 8. The Court ruled 

that the exact records at issue in this case, could not be disclosed to Defendant Heslep, ''when 

comparing the potential litigation benefits associated with a release of the records against the 

need to protect their confidentiality, the importance of the records is substantially outweighed by 

the Plaintiffs rights to keep those records confidential. Therefore, the records may not be 

disclosed under West Virginia law." Id. at 9. The Court granted the motion to quash the 

subpoena and denied the motion to compel based upon W.Va. Code § 27-3-1. 

B. 	The Circuit Judge of Wood County erred when he ruled that a patient could not 
rely on the protections of the W.Va. Code § 27-3-1 to bring an action against a 
hospital who responded to a subpoena. 

The Circuit Judge of Wood County erred when he held that a patient could not rely on the 

protections of West Virginia Code § 27-3-1 to bring an "action against a hospital that properly 

complied with West Virginia and/or HIPP A regulations in responding to a subpoena for that 

patient's medical records where the patient never raised an objection to the subpoena." (See 

Order Grant. Mot. to Dismiss § 22; R.ll8). However, West Virginia law recognizes a private 

tort cause of action for a violation of W.Va. Code §27-3-1. Syl. Pt. 1 Allen v. Smith, 368 S.E.2d 

924 (W.Va. 1988). Defendant contends that, "West Virginia Code § 27-3-1 does create a private 
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cause for breach of confidentiality, but such action cannot be created under the facts and 

circumstances of this case ...as there is a valid subpoena to which she did not object to nor move 

to quash." (See De! Sup. Mem. in Supp. o/Mot. to Dismiss; R.70). 

However, this Court has found that a patient does have a cause of action for a breach of 

confidentiality under § 27-3-1. In Morris, the Court found, "a patient does have a cause of action 

for the breach of the duty of confidentiality against a treating physician who wrongfully divulges 

confidential information." Morris v. Consolidation Coal Co., 191 W.Va. 426, 446 S.E.2d 648 

(1994). In Morris, an employee brought suit against his doctor for breaching his confidential 

physician-patient relationship and against his employer for its interference with his relationship 

with the doctor. The Court recognized that, "when a physician wrongly discloses information, 

the right which is violated is the patient's right to have the information kept confidential." Id at 

25. Here the Court explicitly discusses the right that is violated is "the patient's right to have the 

information kept confidential." W.Va. Code § 27-3-1 explicitly covers such right, as it is the 

"Definition of Confidential Information" and the exceptions for such disclosure. Here, as in 

Morris. the hospital breached their duty to Ms. Barber when they released her confidential 

mental health records. 

The Court also found in Allen v. Smith that, "there is a private tort cause of action for a 

violation of W.Va. Code 27-3-1." Allen v. Smith, 368 S.E. 2d 924, 926 (W.Va. 1988). The court 

further explained that even with the release of medical records pursuant to a court order, "A 

subpoena is issued automatically by a clerk of court upon the ex parte application of one party 

litigant. .. and is enforceable through the court's power of contempt until it has been quashed by 

regular, in-court proceedings ..." Id at 926. The Court further explained, "sufficient facts were 

alleged to support submission of this case to a jury on the theory that Dr. Smith was negligent 
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when he released Mrs. Allen's medical records to Mr. Duff without taking reasonable care to 

ensure that only those parts of her medical records that a court had found "relevant" to the 

divorce proceeding would be made public." Id at 926. Here, as in the aforementioned, 

Defendant Camden Clark did not take "reasonable care" to ensure that only the "relevant" parts 

of Ms. Barber's medical records that a court had found to be relevant to the proceeding would be

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