Camden-Clark Memorial Hospital Corporation, incorrectly named as "Camden Clark 

Memorial Hospital Corp." (hereinafter "Camden Clark" or "Respondent") hereby submits this 

brief in response to Petitioner, Jill Barber's ("Petitioner" or "Ms. Barber") appeal. For the 

reasons outlined below, the Circuit Court's decision to grant Camden Clark's Motion to Dismiss 

must be affIrmed.

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

II. SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

The Circuit Court properly granted Respondent's Motion to Dismiss. The Circuit Court 

ruled that Ms. Barber could not state a claim under West Virginia Code § 27-3-1 for breach of 

confidentiality as West Virginia Code §57-5-4a, et seq. and/or 45 CFR § 164.512 dictate the 

proper method for a hospital's release of medical records when it is served with a subpoena. 

After an analysis of the undisputed facts and applicable statutes, the Circuit Court found that 

Camden Clark complied with all requirements set forth in West Virginia Code §57-5-4a, et seq. 

and 45 CFR § 164.512 and that Petitioner could not state a claim for breach of confidentiality 

under West Virginia Code § 27-3-1. For the same reasons, the Circuit Court held that Petitioner 

could not state a common law claim for breach of confidentiality. Petitioner has been unable to 

articulate, either at oral argument before the Circuit Court or in her brief, what other common 

law cause of action (if any) she could bring. Camden Clark properly responded to the subpoena 

at issue herein and the Circuit Court correctly dismissed Petitioner's claims. 
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Finally, the Circuit Court properly found, as an uncontested issue of fact, that Petitioner 

failed to place her counsel on notice to object to or otherwise oppose the subject Subpoena by 

withholding information pertaining to her prior mental health treatment. In ruling on a motion to 

dismiss under Rule 12(b)(6) the Court is to take as true all allegations in the complaint. 

Petitioner clearly alleged in her Complaint that she did not tell anyone about her mental health 

treatment, including her attorney. The Circuit Court properly dismissed Petitioner's claims. 

III. STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT 

Pursuant to Rule 18( a) of the Rules of Appellate Procedure, Camden Clark respectfully 

requests oral argument on this matter as oral argument may aid the Court in the decisional 

process. Additionally, pursuant to Rule 20 of the West Virginia Rules of Appellate Procedure, 

Camden Clark submits that the relationship between West Virginia Code § 27-3-1 on one hand 

and W.Va. Code §57-5-4a, et seq. and/or 45 CFR § 164.512 on the other is an issue of first 

impression before this Court and involves an issue of fundamental public importance, namely, 

the confidentiality of, and production of, medical records in response to an uncontested, properly 

served subpoena. Thus, pursuant to Rules 18 and Rule 20, Camden Clark respectfully requests 

oral argument in this matter. 

IV. STANDARD OF REVIEW 

When a party, as part of an appeal from a final judgment, assigns as error a circuit court's 

granting of a motion to dismiss, the circuit court's disposition of the motion to dismiss will be 

reviewed de novo. Ewing v. Bd of Educ. of Cnty of Summers, 202 W.Va. 228, 230 (1998). 

Pursuant to Rule 12(b)( 6) of the West Virginia Rules of Civil Procedure, a defendant can move 

for, and is entitled to dismissal if, the plaintiff's complaint fails to state a claim upon which relief 

can be granted. W. Va. R. Civ. P. 12(b)(6). In considering a Rule 12(b)(6) motion, this Court is 
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required to take all well-pleaded allegations as true, in the light most favorable to the plaintiff. 

See Price v. Halstead, 177 W. Va. 592, 355 S.E.2d 380 (1987). That said, ''the plaintiff is still 

required at a minimum to set forth sufficient information to outline the elements of hislher claim. 

If a plaintiff fails to do so, dismissal is proper." Franklin D. Cleckley et al., Litigation Handbook 

-on-West- Virginia Rules o/Civil Proced~-(20l2). 

In addition to the pleadings, a court may consider documents annexed to the complaint 

and other materials fairly incorporated within it. This may include documents that are referred to 

in the complaint but not annexed to it. Further, Rule 12(b) permits a court to consider matters 

that are susceptible to judicial notice. Id. at 387 (2012) citing In re Colonial Mortgage Bankers 

Corp., 324 F.3d 12 (lst Cir. 2003); Palay v. United States, 349 F.3d (7th Cir. 2003); In re K-Tel 

Intern, Inc., 300 F.3d 881 (8th Cir. 2002). Judicial proceedings constitute public records, 

therefore a court may take judicial notice of another court's opinion. Cleckley et al., Litigation 

Handbook on West Virginia Rules ofCivil Procedure 387 n. 1162. Any inconsistencies between 

the complaint and the instrument must be resolved in favor of the latter. Id citing Arruda v. 

Sears Roebuck & Co., 310 F.3d 13 (1 st Cir. 2002). That is, where an exhibit and the complaint 

conflict, the exhibit typically controls. Id A court is not bound by the party's characterization 

ofan exhibit and may independently examine and form its own opinions about the document. Id. 

V. ARGUMENT 

1. 	 Petitioner cannot state a cause of action for breach of confidentiality 
pursuant to West Virginia Code § 27-3-1 where she failed to object to a 
properly served subpoena for all of her medical records and where the health 
care provider produced her medical records in compliance with West 
Virginia Code § 57-5-4a. et seq. and 45 CFR § 164.512. 

The Circuit Court correctly granted Camden Clark's motion to dismiss as a matter of law 

because West Virginia Code § 27-3-1 is inapplicable under the facts of this case. West Virginia 
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Code § 27-3-1 is wholly silent on situations involving the production of medical records pursuant 

to a valid subpoena, and does not conflict with, and is not contrary to, West Virginia Code § 57

5-4a, et seq. and 45 CFR § 164.512, which govern a non-party hospital's obligations when such a 

subpoena is properly served. Camden Clark does not dispute that W.Va. Code § 27-3-1 creates 

a private cause of action for breach of confidentiality. However, as the Circuit Court correctly 

held, such cause of action cannot and does not exist in the context of a non-party hospital 

responding to a subpoena, to which its patient never objected, in compliance with West Virginia 

Code §57-5-4a, et seq, and 45 CFR § 164.512. 

As the Circuit Court correctly ruled, under the undisputed facts of this case, Petitioner's 

cause of action, if any, would be governed by West Virginia Code §57-5-4a, et seq., and/or 45 

CFR § 164.512, which dictate the proper method for a hospital's release of medical records in 

response to a subpoena. West Virginia Code § 57-5-4b is entitled: "Hospital records; furnishing 

copies in compliance with subpoenas." The definition of "records" in §57-5-4a(a) covers all 

records held by a hospital whether related to mental health or otherwise, for care rendered when 

the patient was minor or an adult. The statute states: 

'Records' means and includes without restriction, those medical histories, records, reports, 
summaries, diagnoses, and prognoses, records of treatment and medication ordered and 
given, notes, entries, X-rays, and other written or graphic date prepared, kept. made. and 
maintained in hospitals that pertain to the hospital confinements or hospital services rendered 
to patients admitted to hospitals or receiving emergency room or outpatient care. Such 
records shall not, however, include ordinary business records pertaining to patients' accounts 
or the administration of the institution. 

W. Va. Code §57-5-4a(a) (emphasis added.) The language of West Virginia Code § 57-5-4a(a) 

is purposefully sweeping, encompassing all types of medical records maintained in hospitals, 

including mental health records, and excluding only the specifically-referenced administrative 

materials. In contrast, West Virginia Code § 27-3-1 does not address any procedure to be 
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followed by a non-party hospital in litigation when producing records in response to a valid 

subpoena to which its patient voiced no objection. The language of the statutes are clear and 

unambiguous, the legislative intent is plain, and the Circuit Court followed its duty "not to 

construe but to apply the statute." W. V.a Dept. ofTrans. v. Veach, 239 W.Va. 1, 799 S.E.2d 78, 

91-92 (2017). 

Contrary to Petitioner's argument, the protections to mental health patients provided by 

W. Va. Code § 27-3-1 are not eliminated by, but rather exist within the constructs of W. Va. 

Code § 57-5-4a, et seq. In Keplinger, this Court ruled that the provisions of West Virginia Code 

§57-5-4a, et seq. must be followed any time a subpoena duces tecum is issued for production of 

hospital records. ld at 19, 26. In fact, mental health records, just as in this case, were the 

subject of the subpoenas discussed in Keplinger. ld. The Court specifically found that the 

statutory scheme set forth in West Virginia Code §57-5-4a, "acknowledges the special, personal 

and confidential nature of hospital records by requiring that the sealed records be opened only 

upon a determination that the patient involved, or his or her counsel ofrecord, has consented to 

their opening." ld. at 18 (emphasis added), citing W.Va. Code. § 57-5-4d.2 In other words, the 

protections of W. Va. Code § 27-3-1 parallel the protections provided by the mandatory 

prerequisites for unsealing records set forth in W.Va. Code § 57-5-4d. 

The procedures set forth in West Virginia Code § 57-5-4a, et seq., as well as 45 CFR § 

164.512 not only provide ample protection to the patient, who has the opportunity to object or 

2 West Virginia Code §57-5-4d provides, in pertinent part, " ...the copy of the records shall remain sealed and shall 
be opened only at the time of trial, deposition, or other hearing, upon the direction of the judge, court, officer, body 
or tribunal conducting the proceeding, in the presence of all parties who have appeared in person or by counsel at 
such trial, deposition or hearing. Before directing that such inner-envelope or wrapper be opened, the judge, court, 
officer, body or tnbunal shall first ascertain that either: (1) The records have been subpoenaed at the insistence of 
the patient involved or his counsel of record; or (2) the patient involved or someone authorized in his behalf to do so 
for him has consented thereto and waived any privilege of confidence involved." As the Keplinger Court noted, an 
attorney issuing a subpoena to a hospital is an "officer" of the court among those authorized to unseal records, so 
long as the requirements of West Virginia Code § 57-5-4d are followed. 
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move to quash the initial subpoena and the opportunity to oppose the unsealing of the records 

after they have been produced, but these statutes also provide clear guidance and protection to 

hospitals who are tasked with the burden of responding to numerous subpoenas and other kinds 

of requests for patient medical records. Following the Petitioner's argument - that a hospital 

complying with § 57-5-4a, et seq. may still be held liable for breach of confidentiality under § 

27-3-1 - hospitals would have a very difficult time responding to subpoenas for fear of exposing 

themselves to liability for disclosing information its patient(s) did not want released even when 

the patient never objects to the subpoena and the records are produced under seal to the 

subpoenaing party. As the Circuit Court properly determined, "hospitals must be allowed to rely 

on the processes set out in W. Va. Code § 57-5-4a, et seq. and 45 CFR § 164.512 when 

responding to subpoenas. When a hospital complies with the processes set out in West Virginia 

Code § 57-5-4a, et seq. or 45 CFR § 164.512 and where its patient raises no objection to the 

subpoena, it cannot be sued by its patient under W. Va. Code § 27-3-1 for its disclosure of 

confidential medical records." (J.A., p.146 ~25) (emphasis added). 

Nothing in West Virginia case law interpreting West Virginia Code § 27-3-1 stands for 

the contrary. For example, in Allen v. Smith, 179 W.Va 360, 368 S.E.2d. 924 (1988), the 

plaintiff brought suit alleging that her psychiatrist improperly produced mental health records in 

response to an ex parte subpoena served by her husband's counsel during a divorce proceeding. 

The psychiatrist relied exclusively upon language in West Virginia Code § 27-3-1 (b)(3), 

asserting that he was allowed to produce records in response to a court order, which he claimed 

was the subpoena, despite the fact that it had been served without the Plaintiff's knowledge, and 

without providing the opportunity to object. This Court noted that a bare, ex parte subpoena is 

not the same as a Court order under West Virginia Code § 27-3-1(b)(3): 
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[w]e find that Mrs. Allen is justified in her complaint about Dr. Smith's failure to contact her 
and inform her that he and his records had been subpoenaed. Dr. Smith did not use 
reasonable diligence to ascertain the name ofthe lawyer who was representing Mrs. Allen 
so that he could inform him that a request had been made for Mrs. Allen's medical 
records. Had he informed Mrs. Allen or her lawver. ofcourse. a motion could have been 
made on Mrs. Allen's behalfto quash the subpoena. Then, and only the, would there have 
been a binding court ruling determining whether the records came within the exception to 
confidentiality set forth in W.Va. Code §27-3-1(b)(3). 

Allen, 179 W. Va. at 362 (emphasis added). The limited issue before the Court in Allen was 

whether a bare, ex parte subpoena constituted a "court order" as contemplated by § 27-3-1(b)(3). 

Because the Allen case involved an ex parte subpoena, about which the plaintiff was completely 

unaware, it is easily distinguishable from the case at hand. 

In the present case, Sedgwick Claims Management issued a subpoena duces tecum to 

Camden Clark pursuant to Rule 45 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, requesting all of Ms. 

Barber's medical records for inspection and copying. (J.A., p.15-19). A copy of this subpoena 

was served on Ms. Barber's counsel, with adequate notice and opportunity to object or move to 

quash the SUbpoena. Nevertheless, neither Ms. Barber nor her counsel filed objections or 

motions to quash. Id After being advised by the subpoenaing party that the time for objections 

and/or motions had passed and none had been filed or raised, Camden Clark followed the 

procedures set forth in West Virginia Code §57-5-4a et seq. and 45 CFR § 164.512 and provided 

all of Ms. Barber's medical records to counsel for Sedgwick in double sealed envelopes. As is 

illustrated below, Camden Clark properly complied with the subpoena at issue in this case. For 

this reason, the Circuit Court was correct in dismissing Petitioner's Complaint and its ruling 

should be affumed. 

a. 	 Camden Clark followed the applicable state and federal statutes regarding 
subpoena compliance and therefore the Circuit Court was correct in 
dismissing Ms. Barber's Complaint. 
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The Circuit Court correctly dismissed Petitioner's Complaint because Camden Clark 

complied with both West Virginia law and HIP AA regulations in responding to the subpoena, In 

particular, the Circuit Court ruled that "[w]hen a hospital complies with the processes set out in 

W. Va. Code §57-5-4a et seq. or CFR § 164.512 and where its patient raises no objection to the 

subpoena, it cannot be sued by its patient under W. Va. Code §27-3-1 for its disclosure of 

confidential medical records." (J.A., p.119, ~25). 

i. Camden Clark complied with 45 CFR § 164.512. 

45 CFR §164.512, entitled "Uses and disclosures for which an authorization or 

opportunity to agree or object is not required," lays out the requirements for disclosures of 

protected health information in judicial and administrative proceedings in response to a 

subpoena. The federal regulations provide, in pertinent part, as follows: 

(e) Standard: Disclosures for judicial and administrative proceedings-{l) 
Permitted disclosures. A covered entity may disclose protected health information 
in the course of any judicial or administrative proceeding: 

*** 
(ii) In response to a subpoena, discovery request, or other lawful process, that is 
not accompanied by an order ofa court or administrative tribunal, if: 

(A) The covered entity receives satisfactory assurance, as described in paragraph 
(e)(l)(iii) of this section, from the party seeking the information that reasonable 
efforts have been made by such party to ensure that the individual who is the 
subject of the protected health information that has been requested has been given 
notice of the request; or 

(B) The covered entity receives satisfactory assurance, as described in paragraph 
(e)(l)(iv) of this section, from the party seeking the information that reasonable 
efforts have been made by such party to secure a qualified protective order that 
meets the requirements ofparagraph (e)(l)(v) of this section. 

(iii) For the purposes ofparagraph (e)(l)(ii)(A) of this section, a covered entity 
receives satisfactory assurances from a party seeking protected health information 
if the covered entity receives from such party a written statement and 
accompanying documentation demonstrating that: 
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(A) The party requesting such information has made a good faith attempt to 
provide written notice to the individual (or, if the individual's location is 
unknown, to mail a notice to the individual's last known address);

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